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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Calvary Presbyterian Church, built in Portland in 1882~1883 after a
design by prominent local architect Warren H. Willjams, is generally
acknowledged to be the prime example in wooden construction of High Victoriah
Gothic architecture in the state. Under authority of a local ordinance, the
building was designated a Portland Historical Landmark in March, 1970. The
building has been partially restored by The 01d Church Society, Inc. It is
operated by the Soc1ety as a meeting, lecture and recital hall.

"The 01d Church" is beljeved to have been the most elaborate of a number
of similar vernacular churches built in Portland during the 1870s and 1880s.
Of its type, it is the sole survivor, and it is the oldest church standing
in the city. Covered with board and batten siding and finished with Gothic
ornament, buttresses, pointed arch openings and window tracery, the church
‘measures 75 by 112 feet atop a full basement. The dominant space in the
rectangular plan is the preaching hall, or sanctuary, from which there extend
a gallery, office, chapel, classroom and utility areas. The distinctive
feature of the exterjor is a louvered belfry tower and spire on the southwest
corner which marks the point of access into the vestibule and sanctuary. A
porte cochere which sheltered an entry adjacent to the vestibule on the
south end was removed in recent years. The structure is to be replaced in
the course of restoration.

Interjor trim is adapted from Gothic and Italian Renajssance_styles.

The vaulted plaster ceiling of the sanctuary js decorated with gilded wooden
ribs .and is supported by two cast iron columns spaced amid the center pews.
Forming a screen at the back of the chancel on the east wall of the sanctuary
are pipes and fittings of the original Hook and Hastings organ which is stil]
operable and used regularly in recitals.
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CALVARY PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH

Location

The property is located in NE 1/4 sec. 4, T. 1 N., R. 1 E., of
Willamette Meridian, in Multnomah County, Oregon.

Lots 5 and 6, Block 244, Portland.

Representation in Existing Surveys

Portland Historical Landmark

Designated March 1970
(Survey prepared by Portland Chapter, A.I.A., 1965)

Portland Historical Landmarks Commission

City of Portland

1220 S. W. 5th Avenue

Portland, Oregon 97204 Code: 41
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Formation of the Calvary Presbyterian Church and Society in 1880 was
a propitious moment in the growth of the Presbyterian Church in Portland.
Although missions and Sunday Schools had earlier expanded into residential
nejghborhoods, the original congregation had not been considered large
enough to support additional Socijeties before this time.

Willijam S. Ladd, Portland pijoneer of 1851, and a banker and promoter
of important early Oregon enterprises, donated a site for the new building
at S. W. 11th Avenue and Clay Street. Socijety trustees included men prom-
inent in local affairs: Captain George J. Ainsworth, shipping and railway
magnate; bankers William M. Ladd and Charles E. Ladd, sons of the donor
of the property; and Henry J. Corbett.

When preliminary drawings for the church were discarded as too expensi
Warren Heywood Williams, the leading Portland architect of the day, offere
to contribute a design and supervise construction. W. F. Lewis was hired
as builder. The cornerstone was laid in September 1882, and construction
was completed in the following year at a cost of approximately $36,000.

Warren Heywood Willfiams was born in New York City in 1844, 1In 1850
he emigrated with his father, Stephen Heddon Williams, an architect, to
San Francisco. The young Williams learned architecture from his father.
He started as a draftsman and later became a partner. News of the first
great fire in Portland, in December 1872, drew Willjams to the Oregon port
where he quickly established a reputation as a stylist. For a time he
worked with builder E. M. Burton. A long professional association with
H. W. Corbett began in 1874 with the design of Mr. Corbett's mansion. His
documented designs of the 1870s and 1880s included Portland's most substan
tial business blocks and fashionable residences. Of his surviving works,
Villard Hall on the University of Oregon campus in Eugene executed in the
style of the Second Empire Baroque, and Calvary Presbyterian Church in
Portland in the High Victorian Gothic style are among the important exampl
of late 19th century architecture in Oregon.
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